
Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      October 8, 2014

1

CARLIN CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF CARLIN, STATE OF NEVADA

REGULAR MEETING
CARLIN CITY HALL

101 SOUTH EIGHTH STREET
CARLIN, NEVADA

October 8, 2014, 7:00 p.m.

Call to Order and Roll Call:
Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner called the meeting of the City Council to order at 7:00 p.m.
Council Members Present:  Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner

Councilperson Bob DeMars
Councilperson Jay Duke
Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield

                                    Absent: Mayor Cliff Eklund
1. Administrative Staff: Assistant City Clerk Heather Trujillo, City Manager David Jones
2. Present:  Jim Brown,  Pam Griswold, Mary Winter, Kathi Bran d mueller , Fred Montes de Oca , Lee 

Hoffman

Pledge of Allegiance

I.Review, discussion and possible approval of  the Brownfields Grant extension and progress , and all 
related matters. (Non Action Item)
1. Kathi Bran d mueller  reported the City has had  a  Brownfields Grant for 3 years and they gave a 

presentation when the grant started.  She noted the interest at that time was to look at the 
railroad property to determine if it could be cleared for purchase and reused.  She reported they 
have been unable to get on the property, but in the past few weeks they have made progress 
working with Rep. Amodei’s office trying to get access.  She reported she met with City 
Manager David Jones to discuss this and he is getting an appraisal for the property.  She noted 
they would come back to the Council when this appraisal is done. She explained the railroad 
requires that anyone must sign a  purchase agreement in  order to get access.   She stated they did 
an assessment of the “big square in the middle of town” is an “Act of Congress” site, meaning 
that Congress has to re - designate that land.  She noted this was given to the railroad originally 
with the condition that they could not sell it.   She reported that Amodei’s office is willing to get 
them assess while the City has the grant money and Amodei will put it on another bill to enable 
them to sell it.  She noted they are currently checking to see if the railroad is willing to sell it 
and they can then find out if it is contaminated.  She stated if it is determined to be an “Act of 
Congress” site, they have to wait until the bill goes through Congress.     She stated the railroad 
has been cooperative in talking to them.  She noted two more parcels were identified on Main 
Street that have been purchased by people who are  interested in redeveloping and those will be 
checked for contamination too.  She stated  in  checking up  un til now, they  have  found some 
contamination, but not a lot.  

2. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated the railroad seems to be more amenable to discussion 
lately.  

3. Kathi Bran d mueller  stated she  provided a print out of all the parcels they have investigated and 
the only place they found minor contamination on Main Street 400 block.  She reported that the 
old State Inn Café showed asbestos and lea d  paint in the structure.  She noted City Manager 
David Jones is researching a grant from the state to do  asbestos  and lead abatement on the 
property.  She noted the building is not safe.  She stated it would be better to demolish the 
building and she is currently gathering information on the cost of demolition.  She stated there 
is a  F or  S ale sign on it and it would have to be purchased from the owner before this is done.   
She suggested several options.   She noted if they cannot get grant money to help with the 



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      October 8, 2014

2

demolition, they would not want the building, because it is unsafe and could collapse. 
4. Discussion was held on the many ideas that have been put forth about the land.
5. Kathi Bran d mueller  reported they were able to clear the Fong and Eklund property for 

development.  She stated they are trying to get the EPA permission to do a survey of the old 
senior citizen building.  

6. Discussion was held on the historical value, but it was noted there was not  on the historical 
register.

7. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated she would like to save the old building for future use as a 
possible museum.  

8. Kathi Bran d mueller  stated once a building is put on the register, there are restrictions on what 
can be done.   She noted that sometimes if they have had one grant it is easier to get a second 
grant.   She discussed the Barrick property is cleared for use.  She stated they did get a 6-month 
extension on the grant.  

9. Discussion was held on half of the grant having been spent.
10. Discussion was held on hazardous material sites and petroleum sites.
11. Kathi Bran d mueller  explained that contaminated property can be bought without being cleared, 

but there is a possibility of having responsibility for contamination if due diligence has not been 
done prior to the purchase.  She noted, “You do not buy environmental liabilities”.

12. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield inquired when the old senior center building was constructed.
13. Kathi Brandmueller replied that it was in the early 1900s.
14. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated she thought it was 1910 as a two room school.
15. Councilperson Jay Duke inquired if they could complete this in the 6-month time frame.
16. Kathi Bran d mueller  stated the EPA will look at what they have done in the 6 months and  they 

could  add another 6 months.   She noted they have been aggressive with Amodei’s office and 
the railroad due to the time limit.  

II.Review, discussion and possible approval of a Resolution to Oppose Ballot
Question 2 “Shall the Nevada Constitution be amended to remove the cap on the taxation of 
minerals and other requirements and restrictions related to the taxation of mines, mining 
claims, and minerals and the distribution of money collected from such taxation?” and 
Question 3 “Shall the  Nevada   Revised   Statutes  be amended to create a 2% tax to be imposed 
on a margin of the gross revenue of entities doing business in Nevada whose total revenue for 
any taxable year exceeds $1 million, with the proceeds of the tax going to the State 
Distributive School Account to be apportioned among Nevada’s school districts and charter 
schools?”, 2014 General Election, and all related matters. (Possible Action Item)
1. Lee Hoffman introduced himself as a representative of  Elko County Republican Party to 

discuss the resolution and to encourage the citizens to vote.  He stated in this particular election 
cycle, people are somewhat disinterested in the elections and there are enough votes in Elko 
County to make a difference in statewide elections.  He stated one of his primary purposes is to 
adopt the Resolution that they can use to say  the election cycle is important.   He stated that the 
local party believes that both questions are bad for Elko.

2. Councilperson Jay Duke stated he agrees with the resolution.
3. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield also agreed.
4. Councilperson Bob DeMars stated he also opposes the questions.
5. Pam Griswold thanked Mr. Hoffman for bringing this to the public.
6. Fred Montes de Oca stated he is surprised that more mine superintendents and CEOs  haven’t 

been  talking to the councils and different groups.  He stated they are the ones that should be 
talking to the people.  

7. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated he is “preaching to the choir” and wonders if the 
resolution will do any good and a resolution won’t make any difference to the people.

8. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield stated they can preach about this, but the people do not care 
about this issue. 



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      October 8, 2014

3

9. Lee Hoffman stated he is asking them to adopt the resolution and get a boost by getting this to 
the press  and stating that the cities and counties have gotten behind the resolution.  He stated 
this is one way to get the word out that the questions are detrimental to the county and after 
doing this he hopes to get more voters to adopt it.  

10. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated they need to do more than that and she does not see this is 
enough.  She stated until the people understand, they are going to vote for it or not vote at all.

11. Lee Hoffman explained the dynamic of the south and there is a bit of apathy.  He stated the 
mining industry has not been trying to increase the vote there by doing any polling

12. Councilperson Jay Duke   moved  for   approval  of  the  Resolution  opposing Questions 2 and 
3 on the ballot.  Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried.  

II.Review, discussion and possible approval of the  minutes for July 23, 2014   and all related matters.    
(Possible Action Item)
1. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield  moved  for  approval of the  minutes for July 23, 2014   and 

all related matters .   Councilperson Bob DeMars  seconded the motion.   The motion 
carried.  

III.Review , discussion  and possible approval of payments for the periods  09/ 24 /2014 to  10/8/ 2014 ,  and all 
related matters. (Possible Action Item)
1. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield  moved for  ap proval of payments for the periods   

09/ 24 /2014 to  10/8/ 2014 ,  and all related matters.  Councilperson Bob DeMars   seconded the 
motion.  The motion carried.

IV.City Council Members’ Reports.
City Council Members report on issues, concerns and events regarding Public 
Safety, Public Works, Planning Commission, Parks & Recreation, Senior Center, 
Cemetery and other matters of interest
(Non-Action Item)

1. Councilperson Jay Duke  reported  Dennis Fobes has been cleared to be the next Chief of Police 
for Carlin and moving forward with his training.  He noted Mr. Fobes is excited about the 
opportunity as was Chief Bauer.  

2. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield confirmed that Mr. Fobes would start his classes in January.
3. Councilperson Jay Duke stated that is the tentative schedule.
4. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield  reported  the Candidates Forum was valuable .   He noted the 

Master plan was brought up and he drove around the town and saw properties that definitely 
need curb appeal.  He stated the Code Enforcement officer has also seen them and making sure 
that the property owners are doing their due diligence.  

5. Councilperson Bob DeMars stated a lot of communities around Carlin have Welcome signs and 
he talked to sign companies in Elko and it would be nice to have one.  He stated it is another 
added attraction, but it is expensive.  

6. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield  reported  they have a reader board that has never been 
installed and it needs to be done.  

7. Councilperson Bob DeMars stated that WREC would be willing to put it on their place.
8. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated  she attended the dance at the Library and the band stated 

they would come back any time.  She noted the city needs to have more of these and more 
events that they can enjoy each other’s company, more community get-togethers .   She noted the 
Spook Walk is coming and noted that Public Works Director Carlos Esparza has done a lot of 
work there.  She requested people help Ellen Meshefski with the event.  She commented on the 
special place Carlin is and it was brought home by the recent tragedy.  

VI.City Clerk’s Report. (Non – Action Item)



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      October 8, 2014

4

1.  Assistant City Clerk Heather Trujillo had no report.

VII.City Manager’s Report (Non-Action Item)
1. City Manager  David Jones  report ed  action should be taken on  the 2 nd  meeting s  in  both  

November and December.

VIII.Comments by the General Public: Pursuant to NRS 241.020(2C) this time is devoted to comments by 
the general public and discussion to those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter 
raised under this item until the matter has been included on a successive agenda and 
identified as an action item. (Non-Action Item).
1. Fred Montes de Oca  stated  there was a 5-year lease on the property for the reader   board. He 

stated he talked to the members a couple of times about it.
2. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield stated it was discussed, but Fred Montes de Oca was 

supposed to get with the City Manager and it never came back to the Council.  
3. Fred Montes de Oca stated it did come back as a two-year lease and he was not charging 

anything for it.  He stated he brought it up a couple of times.
4. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield inquired i f  he was going to charge for it with the power and 

everything. 
5. Fred Montes de Oca stated it was going to be put on his land and it never was.
6. Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield inquired if there was power there.
7. Fred Montes de Oca  stated  City Manager Glenn Trust  was going to look into getting power out 

there. 
8. Councilperson Jay Duke   inquired why they were talking about a lease if it was going to be 

there permanently.  
9. Fred   Montes de Oca  stated  if he ever wanted to sell the property what would happen to the  

reader board.  He inquired, “If you don’t want it, I want to get rid of that piece of property”.
10. City Manager David Jones stated that City Manager Glenn Trust told him the cost was 

significant for the signposts, power, etc.
11. Fred Montes de Oca stated the City would have to pay for the power and that is connected to 

the motel.  He stated the City would get their own power and have their own pole.    
12. Vice Mayor Donnetta Skinner  requested they pursue this and see if the  reader board  site can be 

resolved.  
13. Pam Griswold inquired if the property on 10 th  Street where they have their sprinklers belongs to 

the state.  

IX. Adjournment. (Action Item)
Councilperson Lincoln Litchfield  moved for adjournment with  Councilperson Jay Duke   
seconding the motion.  The motion carried. The meeting was adjourned at 8:10 p.m.

APPROVED:

DONNETTA SKINNER, VICE MAYOR

ATTEST:



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      October 8, 2014

5

_____________________________
ASSISTANT CITY CLERK HEATHER TRUJILLO


